
UNAPPROVED MINUTES FROM THE NOVEMBER 4,2009 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

SUP-0022-2009 King of Glory SUP Amendment 

Mr. Jose Ribeiro stated that staff revised SUP condition #4 regarding irrigation. He said 
the intent of the revision is to improve readability and create greater consistency with the 2007 
Water Conservation Guidelines approved by the Board of Supervisors. 

Mr. Ribeiro stated that Mr. Matthew Connolly has applied for a Special Use Permit to 
amend adopted SUP conditions for King of Glory Lutheran Church to allow placement of two 
modular buildings and expand the church's accessory uses onto a recently acquired property at 
4881 Longhill Road. The newly acquired parcel was formerly operated as Crossroads Youth 
Home and the church plans to use the existing buildings for office space, meeting space, and 
Sunday school activities. The parcels are zoned R-2, where houses of worship are a specially 
permitted use. The SUP is triggered by the change and expansion of the church use. Longhill 
Road is a Community Character Corridor. Two modular buildings will be placed on existing 
impervious cover. A gravel drive will connect existing parking at the church to 4881 Longhill 
Road. The access from 4881 Longhill Road to Longhill Road will be closed. Staff recommends 
landscaping in place of the closed entrance in accordance with guidelines for the 50 foot 
Community Character Corridor buffer. A northbound left tum lane will also be eliminated. All 
agencies and staff recommend approval with conditions listed. 

Mr. Ribeiro stated that no adjacent property owners had commented on the proposal. 

Mr. Henderson stated that traffic queues on the property after church services. He asked 
if another entrance would be allowed by Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT) 527 
Ordinances, due to parking and spacing. 

Mr. Ribeiro stated that VDOT has recommended closing the 4881 Longhill entrance due 
to lack of sight distance and to consolidate to only one entrance to the entire church property. 

Mr. Henderson stated that vehicle stacking on the church property was an issue. He said 
the proposal would create additional traffic problems that could have been addressed. He asked 
if County emergency services wanted to retain use of the entrance. 

Mr. Ribeiro stated the Fire Department's only comments were that the cut-through gravel 
road should be designed to support the weight of emergency vehicles. 

Mr. Henderson stated that when gravel drives connect to asphalt, gravel tracks across 
asphalt, which degrades both surfaces. He asked who required the gravel drive. 

Mr. Ribeiro stated that the applicant has proposed the gravel drive. He said the church 
master plan uses the gravel drive and a footpath for internal traffic. 

Mr. Henderson stated his main concern was a lack of vehicular access to the property. 



Mr. Fraley asked if the revised irrigation SUP condition was for outdoor irrigation and 
Mr. Ribeiro concurred. 

Mr. Fraley stated that the DRC discussed irrigation for the Police building, but the 
applicant stated there were no irrigation plans for the project. 

Mr. Krapf stated that as part of its LEED certification, the Police building received points 
for not having an irrigation system. 

Mr. Fraley stated that the Police building applicant did not have to exclude an irrigation 
system to earn LEED points. He said the applicant stated they would not be watering. He did 
not want two irrigation standards for applicants. He asked if staff would require the irrigation 
condition if the applicant did not intend to water landscaping. 

Mr. Ribeiro stated the watering condition was recommended by the James City Service 
Authority (JCSA). He said the JCSA wants conditions for SUPs and rezonings. Irrigation is a 
commonly used condition that is modified on a case-by-case basis. 

Mr. Fraley stated he did not want two different standards for public and private irrigation. 

Mr. Murphy stated that due to the modular buildings and wooded lot, if the applicant did 
not intend to irrigate, it would be acceptable. The intent of the SUP condition is to prevent 
connection to the JCSA system for irrigation purposes. 

Mr. Krapf stated that the Crossroads property's stormwater runoff is captured by a 
receiving channel on the west of the property, which runs into Powhatan Creek. He asked Mr. 
Ribeiro to address the nature of the channel. 

Mr. Ribeiro stated that all of the undeveloped land at 4881 Longhill Road drains into a 
natural channel contained with a Resource Protection Area. Developed land on these parcels 
drains to a stormwater pond. There will be no drainage issues from the proposal. 

Mr. Henderson asked if the church had an irrigation system. 

Mr. Matthew Connolly, the applicant, stated that he did not believe the church had an 
irrigation system. 

Mr. Henderson asked if the church would be prevented from tying into JCSA if the 
irrigation system was already in place. 

Mr. Murphy stated that the church would be precluded from expanding any existing 
irrigation system. 

Mr. Krapf opened the public hearing. 



Mr. Connolly stated that the gravel drive was temporary and was only added to the 
proposal when VDOT decided to close the entrance. The Crossroads buildings would eventually 
be demolished. The church had three distinct areas of expansion it was considering. One or two 
church staffers currently use the entrance each day. Twenty children attend Sunday school and 
walk to the Crossroads property from the existing church. The church may decide it is more 
economical to refurbish the existing buildings on the Crossroads property rather than adding the 
modulars. 

Mr. Henderson asked Mr. Murphy if the placement of the temporary trailers in the 
property is triggering the SUP requirement. 

Mr. Murphy stated that not only the placement of the temporary trailers but also the 
changing of use of 4881 Longhill Road property to a church use is triggering the SUP. 

Mr. Connolly stated that parents dropping their children off for Sunday school create 40 
trips in an hour from the entrance to be closed. He said that the two entrances are 170 feet apart 
and that the exit was dangerous. 

Mr. Murphy stated that VDOT recognized a safety issue with the existing entrance. He 
said internal church stacking is common throughout the County and that safety on public roads is 
a main concern. 

Mr. Connolly stated there has been no recent major increase in church attendance. Mr. 
Connolly also stated that the church may expand in the near future. 

Mr. Murphy stated that additional future expansions would require a SUP. 

Mr. Poole asked if the applicant was comfortable with all the eleven SUP conditions 
proposed by staff. 

Mr. Connolly stated he was comfortable with the eleven SUP conditions, including the 
irrigation limitations. 

Mr. Krapf closed the public hearing. 

Ms. Kratter moved for approval as amended, with a second from Mr. Poole. 

Mr. Henderson stated that if the church has an existing irrigation system, the SUP should 
not prohibit its future expansion. He said the applicant should have the same privileges as the 
Police building, with no irrigation required. He suggested striking the irrigation provision. 

Mr. Murphy stated the County has Board-adopted irrigation guidelines. He stated the 
guidelines include a relief clause, allowing the General Manager of the JCSA to grant exceptions 
for shallow wells where surface water is lacking. 

Mr. Fraley stated he did not recall similar language in previous proposals requiring 



inclusion of stonnwater system designs for outdoor uses for an entire development. 

Mr. Ribeiro stated that the condition has been used in previous projects. He stated the 
language for the condition comes almost directly from 2007 Water Conservation Guidelines. 
The requirement was changed in this instance due to a restrictive SUP already in existence. 

Mr. Fraley stated there were public concerns about dying plants at the Police building. 
He stated he did not recall other site plans with the same requirements. 

Mr. Murphy stated the irrigation condition was being added due to its being a SUP. 

Mr. Adam Kinsman stated the original King of Glory SUP pre-dated his time at the 
County. He said the irrigation condition was now relatively common and had been included on a 
number of SUPs and rezonings. 

Mr. Murphy stated the most recent language change was a reference to the 2007 Water 
Conservation Guidelines. 

Mr. Fraley stated the irrigation condition should be more unifonn. 

Mr. Kinsman stated the only opportunity to impose the condition is during the legislative 
process. He said he would consider it more of a JCSA regulation than County ordinance. 

Mr. Murphy stated the irrigation conditions could be reviewed along with the Zoning 
Ordinance updates. 

Mr. Johnson stated that the J CSA recommended the irrigation condition language. 

Mr. Henderson asked if staff had considered the possibility of a right-in or a right-in 
right-out movement at the entrance to the Crossroads property. 

Mr. Ribeiro stated that staff did not investigate a possible right-inlright-out only entrance 
from the Crossroads property. 

Mr. Murphy stated that staff relied on the VDOT recommendations and did not research 
an additional entrance. 

Mr. Henderson stated that there is also a stacking issue for churchgoers turning left into 
the church from Longhill Road. He stated he would like an additional entrance and exit. 

Ms. Kratter asked if the County provided police officers directing traffic after church 
services. She stated a police officer might be a safer alternative during church times. 

Mr. Johnson stated that it is not unprecedented for local churches to pay for traffic control 
on Sundays, citing St. Bede as an example. He said the Crossroads entrance is much closer to 
the Wellspring church entrance than to the King of Glory entrance. He said the applicant had not 



requested a second entrance. Had one been proposed, VDOT would have made a 
recommendation in their review comments. Staff will consult with VDOT on the issue of a 
second entrance prior to the case going before the Board of Supervisors. 

Mr. Poole stated that the applicant agreed with the eleven conditions and did not request a 
new entrance. 

Mr. Henderson stated Commissioners should take into consideration and discuss their 
personal experience with certain properties and uses. 

Mr. Connolly stated it would be less expensive to keep the Crossroads entrance intact, but 
blocked. He stated VDOT wanted the entrance completely removed. 

In a unanimous voice vote, the Commission recommended approval of the SUP, with 
additional staff research on a right-inlright-out entrance for the Crossroads property. (5-0; 
Absent: Billups, Peck). 

Mr. Fraley stated his earlier questions were in regards to specific language he had not 
previously seen. 

Mr. Poole stated that Commissioner experiences are not always relevant to proposals. 


